

RELINQUARY

ENROLLED 1987 ASSEMBLY BILL 850

- 1 AN ACT relating to state finances and appropriations, constituting the 1988
2 annual budget bill, and making appropriations.

GUIDE TO SOURCE DOCUMENTS BY LRB NUMBERS.

ENROLLING PROCEDURE. The enrolled bill consists of the text of 1987 Assembly Bill 850 as passed by the assembly and printed ENGROSSED, as affected by the following amendments adopted by the senate and concurred in by the assembly as part of the report by the committee of conference: Conference Amendment 1 (LRB b3571/3), as affected by the following conference amendments thereto: 1 to 1 (LRB b3737/2), 2 to 1 (LRB b3738/2), 3 to 1 (LRB b3731/2), 4 to 1 (LRB b3739/2), 5 to 1 (LRB b3742/2), 6 to 1 (LRB b3734/2), 7 to 1 (LRB b3741/2), 8 to 1 (LRB b3743/2), 9 to 1 (LRB b3740/2), 10 to 1 (LRB b3732/2), 11 to 1 (LRB b3744/1) and 12 to 1 (LRB b3736/2); Conf. Amdt. 2 (LRB b3711/1); Conf. Amdt. 3 (LRB b3730/2); Conf. Amdt. 4 (LRB b3723/2); Conf. Amdt. 5 (LRB b3710/3); and Conf. Amdt. 6 (LRB b3745/1).

ENGROSSING PROCEDURE. The engrossed text of 1987 Assembly Bill 850 combines the documents adopted by the assembly on March 17, 1988. The assembly adopted Assembly Substitute Amendment 1, as affected by the following Assembly Amendments (A. Amdt.) to that substitute and by the following LRB "b" drafts incorporated into the substitute by Assembly Amendment 114:

A. Amdt. 3 (incl. amendment 6 thereto), A. Amdt. 33, A. Amdt. 75, A. Amdt. 76 (incl. amendments 2, 4 and 7 thereto), A. Amdt. 83, A. Amdt. 94 (incl. amendment 1 thereto), A. Amdt. 95, A. Amdt. 105, A. Amdt. 107, A. Amdt. 110, A. Amdt. 112, and A. Amdt. 114 (as affected by amendment 1 thereto).

The LRB "b" drafts incorporated into the substitute are: 2790/1, 2794/1, 2795/1, 2800/1, 2801/1, 2806/1, 2808/1, 2811/1, 2812/1 (page 1, lines 1 to 7 only), 2813/1, 2814/1, 2817/1, 2832/1, 2833/2, 2838/2, 2839/1, 2843/1, 2844/1, 2846/1, 2854/1, 2863/2, 2864/1, 2866/1, 2867/1, 2869/1, 2875/1, 2878/1, 2883/1, 2884/1, 2886/1, 2888/1, 2890/1, 2910/1, 2913/1, 2914/1, 2915/1, 2917/1, 2920/2, 2921/1, 2923/1, 2926/1, 2927/1, 2928/1, 2931/1, 2934/1, 2935/1, 2936/2, 2937/1, 2938/1, 2943/1, 2944/1, 2945/1, 2946/1, 2947/1, 2952/1, 2953/1, 2962/1, 2963/1, 2964/1, 2965/1, 2966/1, 2967/1, 2970/1, 2971/1, 2972/1, 2973/1, 2988/1, 2989/1, 2992/1, 2994/1, 3001/1, 3002/1, 3003/1, 3004/1, 3010/1, 3011/1, 3014/1, 3017/1, 3018/1, 3019/1, 3020/1, 3022/1, 3023/1, 3024/1, 3030/1, 3032/1, 3021/1, 3029/1, 3040/1 and 3060/1.

ASSEMBLY SUBSTITUTE AMENDMENT 1. Assembly Substitute Amendment 1 consists of the text of 1987 Assembly Bill 850, as affected by the following amendments

drafted for, and reviewed by, the legislative fiscal bureau, to implement the decisions of the joint committee on finance:

| | | | | | |
|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| 87b2264/2 | 87b2274/2 | 87b2280/1 | 87b2281/1 | 87b2284/6 | 87b2297/3 |
| 87b2300/1 | 87b2301/1 | 87b2321/3 | 87b2335/2 | 87b2336/2 | 87b2341/4 |
| 87b2359/3 | 87b2387/1 | 87b2411/1 | 87b2418/2 | 87b2425/1 | 87b2428/1 |
| 87b2432/1 | 87b2437/1 | 87b2442/1 | 87b2446/2 | 87b2447/1 | 87b2450/1 |
| 87b2454/4 | 87b2456/1 | 87b2461/1 | 87b2477/2 | 87b2482/1 | 87b2485/2 |
| 87b2486/1 | 87b2487/2 | 87b2489/1 | 87b2493/1 | 87b2498/1 | 87b2501/1 |
| 87b2502/3 | 87b2504/1 | 87b2507/1 | 87b2512/2 | 87b2514/1 | 87b2515/1 |
| 87b2516/1 | 87b2518/2 | 87b2519/2 | 87b2520/1 | 87b2522/1 | 87b2544/1 |
| 87b2547/1 | 87b2548/1 | 87b2549/1 | 87b2550/2 | 87b2558/2 | 87b2559/1 |
| 87b2563/2 | 87b2567/2 | 87b2574/1 | 87b2575/1 | 87b2576/1 | 87b2580/1 |
| 87b2583/2 | 87b2599/1 | 87b2600/1 | 87b2606/1 | 87b2608/1 | 87b2610/1 |
| 87b2612/3 | 87b2613/2 | 87b2614/1 | 87b2615/2 | 87b2616/1 | 87b2617/1 |
| 87b2619/3 | 87b2620/1 | 87b2621/1 | 87b2622/1 | 87b2624/4 | 87b2629/1 |
| 87b2633/1 | 87b2637/1 | 87b2639/1 | 87b2644/1 | 87b2648/2 | 87b2650/1 |
| 87b2653/1 | 87b2654/2 | 87b2655/2 | 87b2656/1 | 87b2659/1 | 87b2661/1 |
| 87b2662/1 | 87b2663/1 | 87b2664/2 | 87b2665/1 | 87b2667/2 | 87b2668/3 |
| 87b2669/2 | 87b2670/1 | 87b2671/4 | 87b2672/4 | 87b2673/2 | 87b2674/2 |
| 87b2676/2 | 87b2677/1 | 87b2678/2 | 87b2679/3 | 87b2680/2 | 87b2681/2 |
| 87b2682/1 | 87b2683/1 | 87b2684/1 | 87b2686/2 | 87b2687/1 | 87b2688/2 |
| 87b2689/1 | 87b2690/1 | 87b2691/2 | 87b2692/1 | 87b2693/1 | 87b2694/1 |
| 87b2695/2 | 87b2696/2 | 87b2697/1 | 87b2699/1 | 87b2700/2 | 87b2701/2 |
| 87b2702/2 | 87b2703/2 | 87b2704/1 | 87b2705/2 | 87b2706/1 | 87b2707/1 |
| 87b2708/2 | 87b2709/1 | 87b2710/2 | 87b2711/1 | 87b2712/2 | 87b2713/1 |
| 87b2714/3 | 87b2715/1 | 87b2716/2 | 87b2717/2 | 87b2718/1 | 87b2719/2 |
| 87b2720/3 | 87b2722/1 | 87b2723/2 | 87b2724/1 | 87b2725/2 | 87b2727/2 |
| 87b2728/1 | 87b2729/1 | 87b2730/1 | 87b2731/1 | 87b2732/1 | 87b2733/2 |
| 87b2734/3 | 87b2735/1 | 87b2736/1 | 87b2737/1 | 87b2738/1 | 87b2739/1 |
| 87b2740/1 | 87b2741/1 | 87b2742/1 | 87b2743/1 | 87b2744/2 | 87b2745/1 |
| 87b2746/1 | 87b2749/1 | 87b2750/2 | 87b2751/2 | 87b2752/1 | 87b2753/1 |
| 87b2754/1 | 87b2755/1 | 87b2757/1 | 87b2758/2 | 87b2759/1 | 87b2760/1 |
| 87b2761/1 | 87b2762/1 | 87b2763/1 | 87b2764/1 | 87b2765/1 | 87b2766/2 |
| 87b2767/2 | 87b2768/1 | 87b2769/1 | 87b2770/1 | 87b2771/1 | 87b2772/1 |
| 87b2773/1 | 87b2774/1 | 87b2775/1 | 87b2776/1 | 87b2777/1 | 87b2780/1 |
| 87b2781/1 | 87b2782/1 | 87b2783/1 | 87b2784/1 | | |

GUIDE TO NONSTATUTORY MATERIAL

As is the case for all other bills, the sections of the annual budget bill treating statutory material are displayed in the ascending numerical sequence of the statute units affected. In some parts of the bill, not all consecutive SECTION numbers are used.

Treatments of prior session laws (styled "laws of [year], chapter . . ." from 1848 to 1981, and "[year] Wisconsin Act . . ." beginning with 1983) are displayed next by year of original enactment and by act number.

Following the treatment of prior session laws, the remaining nonstatutory material is set forth in bill SECTIONS numbered as follows:

| | |
|---------------|--|
| 3001 to 3057: | <u>NONSTATUTORY PROVISIONS; AGENCY NAME.</u> |
| 3101 to 3157: | <u>APPROPRIATION CHANGES; AGENCY NAME.</u> |
| SECTION 3200. | <u>TERMINOLOGY CHANGES.</u> |
| SECTION 3201. | <u>PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITY CHANGES.</u> |
| SECTION 3202. | <u>CROSS-REFERENCE CHANGES.</u> |
| SECTION 3203. | <u>INITIAL APPLICABILITY.</u> |

SECTION 3204: EFFECTIVE DATES.

For miscellaneous nonstatutory provisions (3001 to 3057), and for appropriation changes (3101 to 3157), there is a separate section number for each agency. The last 2 digits correspond to the subsection identifiers shown below. For example, for miscellaneous nonstatutory provisions affecting the historical society see SECTION 3027.

For terminology changes (3200), program responsibility changes (3201), cross-reference changes (3202), initial applicability (3203) and effective dates (3204), there is a separate subsection number for each agency. For example, for initial applicability provisions affecting the department of public instruction see SECTION 3203 (44).

- | | |
|--|---|
| (1) ADMINISTRATION. | (27) HISTORICAL SOCIETY. |
| (2) ADOLESCENT PREGNANCY PREVENTION AND PREGNANCY SERVICES BOARD. | (29) HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY. |
| (3) AGING AND LONG-TERM CARE BOARD. | (30) INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS. |
| (4) AGRICULTURE, TRADE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION. | (31) INSURANCE. |
| (5) ARTS BOARD. | (32) INVESTMENT BOARD. |
| (6) BANKING. | (33) JOINT COMMITTEE ON FINANCE. |
| (7) BOUNDARY AREA COMMISSION; MINNESOTA-WISCONSIN. | (34) JUDICIAL COMMISSION. |
| (8) BUILDING COMMISSION. | (35) JUDICIAL COUNCIL. |
| (9) CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT PREVENTION BOARD. | (36) JUSTICE. |
| (10) CIRCUIT COURTS. | (37) LEGISLATURE. |
| (11) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY. | (37d) LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR. |
| (12) CONSERVATION CORPS BOARD. | (37p) LOTTERY BOARD. |
| (13) COURT OF APPEALS. | (38) MEDICAL COLLEGE OF WISCONSIN. |
| (14) CREDIT UNIONS. | (39) MILITARY AFFAIRS. |
| (15) CRIMINAL JUSTICE. | (40) NATURAL RESOURCES. |
| (16) DEVELOPMENT. | (41) PERSONNEL BOARD. |
| (17) EDUCATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS BOARD. | (42) PERSONNEL COMMISSION. |
| (18) ELECTIONS BOARD. | (43) PUBLIC DEFENDER BOARD. |
| (19) EMPLOYE TRUST FUNDS. | (44) PUBLIC INSTRUCTION. |
| (20) EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS COMMISSION. | (45) PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION. |
| (21) EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS DEPARTMENT. | (46) REGULATION AND LICENSING. |
| (22) ETHICS BOARD. | (47) REVENUE. |
| (23) GOVERNOR. | (48) SAVINGS AND LOAN. |
| (24) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. | (49) SECRETARY OF STATE. |
| (25) HEALTH FACILITIES AUTHORITY. | (50) SECURITIES. |
| (26) HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD. | (51) SUPREME COURT. |
| | (52) TRANSPORTATION. |
| | (53) TREASURER. |
| | (54) UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM. |
| | (55) VETERANS AFFAIRS. |
| | (56) VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION. |
| | (57) OTHER. |
-

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

1 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cc. 5.02 (5), (18) and (23) of the statutes are
2 amended to read:

3 5.02 (5) "General election" means the election held in even-numbered
4 years on the Tuesday after the first Monday in November to elect United States
5 senators, representatives in congress, presidential electors, state senators,
6 representatives to the assembly, district attorneys, state officers other than
7 the state superintendent and judicial officers, and county officers other than
8 supervisors and county executives.

9 (18) "September primary" means the primary held the 2nd Tuesday in Sep-
10 tember to nominate candidates to be voted for at the general election, and to
11 determine which candidates for state ~~office~~ offices other than district
12 attorney may participate in the Wisconsin election campaign fund.

13 (23) "State office" means the offices of governor, lieutenant governor,
14 secretary of state, state treasurer, attorney general, state superintendent of
15 public instruction, justice of the supreme court, court of appeals judge,
16 circuit court judge, state senator ~~and~~, state representative to the assembly
17 and district attorney.

18 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cd. 5.62 (1) (a) and (3) of the statutes are
19 amended to read:

20 5.62 (1) (a) The ballots shall be made up of the several party tickets
21 with each party entitled to participate in the primary under par. (b) or sub.
22 (2) having its own ballot. The independent candidates for state office other
23 than district attorney shall have a separate ballot for all such candidates as
24 under s. 5.64 (1) (e). The ballots shall be secured together at the bottom.
25 The party ballot of the party receiving the most votes for governor at the
26 last general election shall be on top with the other parties arranged in an

1 order based on their vote for governor at the last general election. The
2 ballot listing the independent candidates shall be placed at the bottom. At
3 polling places where voting machines are used, each party and the independent
4 candidates shall be represented in one or more separate columns or rows on the
5 ballot. At polling places where an electronic voting system is used other
6 than an electronic voting machine, each party and the independent candidates
7 may be represented in separate columns or rows on the ballot.

8 (3) The board shall designate the official primary ballot arrangement for
9 statewide offices and district attorney within each prosecutorial unit by
10 using the same procedure as provided in s. 5.60 (1) (b) for candidates for
11 justice; congressional and state senate candidates by using the same procedure
12 as for circuit judges under s. 5.60 (1) (b) by numbering the assembly dis-
13 tricts and parts of assembly districts within each congressional or senate
14 district; and assembly candidates, by similarly numbering and arranging by
15 population the counties within an assembly district. Independent candidates
16 for state office shall be listed for each office in an order drawn by lot by
17 or under the supervision of the board. Below the names of the independent
18 candidates shall appear the party or principle of the candidates, if any, in 5
19 words or less, as shown on their nomination papers.

20 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1ce. 5.64 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to
21 read:

22 5.64 (1) (e) Within each column, each space shall state the office to be
23 voted for directly above the candidate's first and last name. The candidate's
24 name shall be placed in the party column by which nominated or if independent,
25 in a column designated independent and all candidates for the same office
26 shall appear within the same rows on the ballot. Below the names of the
27 independent candidates shall appear the party or principle of the candidates,
28 if any, in 5 words or less, as shown on their nomination papers. Independent

1 candidates for the same county office shall be listed in the same manner in an
2 order drawn by lot by or under supervision of the county clerk or board of
3 election commissioners. The board shall conduct a redrawing for purposes of
4 determining the arrangement of independent candidates for state office who
5 appeared on the primary ballot in the manner provided in s. 5.60 (1) (b). To
6 the right of each candidate's name, in each column, shall be a square for the
7 elector to make his or her cross (X).

8 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cf. 7.60 (4) (a) and (5) of the statutes are
9 amended to read:

10 7.60 (4) (a) The board of canvassers shall make separate duplicate
11 statements showing the numbers of votes cast for the offices of president and
12 vice president; state officials; U.S. senators and representatives in
13 congress; state legislators; justice; court of appeals judge; circuit judges;
14 district attorneys; municipal judges, if they are elected under s. 755.01 (4);
15 and metropolitan sewerage commissioners, if the commissioners are elected
16 under s. 66.23 (11) (am). The board of canvassers shall also prepare a
17 statement showing the results of any county, vocational district or statewide
18 referendum. Each statement shall state in numbers written out the total
19 number of votes cast in the county for each office; the names of all persons
20 for whom the votes were cast, as returned; the number of votes cast for each
21 person; and the number of votes cast for and against any referendum question.
22 One copy of the statement shall be used to report to the elections board or
23 vocational district board and the other statement shall be filed in the office
24 of the county clerk or board of election commissioners.

25 (5) REPORTING. Immediately following the canvass the county clerk shall
26 deliver or send to the elections board, by 1st class mail, a certified copy of
27 each statement of the county board of canvassers for president and vice
28 president; state officials; senators and representatives in congress; state

1 legislators; justice; court of appeals judge; circuit judge; district
2 attorney; municipal judge, if elected under s. 755.01 (4); and metropolitan
3 sewerage commissioners, if the commissioners are elected under s. 66.23 (11)
4 (am). The statement shall record the returns for each office or referendum by
5 ward, unless combined returns are authorized under s. 5.15 (6) (b) in which
6 case the statement shall record the returns for each group of combined wards.
7 Following primaries the county clerk shall enclose on blanks furnished by the
8 elections board the names, party or principle designation, if any, and number
9 of votes received by each candidate recorded in the same manner. The county
10 clerk shall deliver or transmit the certified statement to the elections board
11 no later than 7 days after each primary and no later than 10 days after any
12 other election. The board of canvassers shall deliver or transmit a certified
13 copy of each statement for any vocational district referendum to the secretary
14 of the district board of vocational, technical and adult education. If the
15 board of canvassers becomes aware of a material mistake in the canvass of an
16 election for state or national office or a statewide or vocational district
17 referendum prior to the close of business on the day the elections board
18 receives returns from the last county board of canvassers with respect to that
19 canvass, the board of canvassers may petition the elections board to reopen
20 and correct the canvass. The elections board shall direct the canvass to be
21 reopened and corrected if it determines that the public interest so requires.
22 If the elections board directs the canvass to be reopened, the board of can-
23 vassers shall reconvene and transmit a certified corrected copy of the canvass
24 statement to the elections board or secretary of the district board of
25 vocational, technical and adult education.

26 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cg. 7.70 (3) (d) and (e) 1 of the statutes are
27 amended to read:

1 7.70 (3) (d) When the certified statements and returns are received, the
2 board of state canvassers shall proceed to examine and make a statement of the
3 total number of votes cast at any election for the offices involved in the
4 election for president and vice president; a statement for each of the offices
5 of governor, lieutenant governor, if a primary, and a joint statement for the
6 offices of governor and lieutenant governor, if a general election; a state-
7 ment for each of the offices of secretary of state, state treasurer, attorney
8 general, and state superintendent; for U.S. senator; representative in con-
9 gress for each congressional district; the state legislature; justice; court
10 of appeals judge; circuit judge; district attorney; municipal judge, if he or
11 she is elected under s. 755.01 (4); metropolitan sewerage commission, if the
12 commissioners are elected under s. 66.23 (11) (am); and for any referenda
13 questions submitted by the legislature.

14 (e) 1. After each September primary, the name of each candidate not
15 defeated in the primary who receives at least 6% of the total vote cast for
16 all candidates on all ballots at the primary for each separate state office
17 except district attorney, and the percentage of the total vote received by
18 that candidate. Such percentage shall be calculated within each district in
19 the case of legislative candidates.

20 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1ch. 8.15 (6) (dm) of the statutes is created to
21 read:

22 8.15 (6) (dm) For district attorneys, not less than 500 nor more than
23 1,000 electors in prosecutorial units over 100,000 population and not less
24 than 200 nor more than 400 electors in prosecutorial units of 100,000 popu-
25 lation or less.

26 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1ci. 8.16 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

27 8.16 (5) Any candidate for a partisan state office except district
28 attorney may also qualify for payments under s. 11.50 if the candidate meets

1 the requirements specified in s. 11.50; however, a candidate who qualifies
2 under this section for placement on the official ballot at the general elec-
3 tion shall appear on such ballot regardless of whether he or she qualifies for
4 payments under s. 11.50.

5 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cj. 8.25 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

6 8.25 (5) DISTRICT ATTORNEY; TERM. A district attorney shall be elected
7 for each prosecutorial unit specified in s. 978.01 at the general election in
8 1988 and biennially thereafter. The regular term of the office of district
9 attorney commences on the first Monday in January next succeeding the
10 officer's election.

11 ••87b3603/1••SECTION 1ck. 8.50 (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by
12 1987 Wisconsin Act (Senate Bill 441), is amended to read:

13 8.50 SPECIAL ELECTIONS. (intro.) Unless otherwise provided, this
14 section applies to filling vacancies in the U.S. senate and house of
15 representatives, executive state offices except the offices of governor ~~and~~,
16 lieutenant governor and district attorney, judicial and legislative state
17 offices, county offices and the offices of municipal judge and member of the
18 board of school directors in school districts organized under ch. 119. State
19 legislative offices may be filled in anticipation of the occurrence of a
20 vacancy whenever authorized in sub. (4) (e). No special election may be held
21 after February 1 preceding the spring election unless it is held on the same
22 day as the spring election, nor after September 1 preceding the general elec-
23 tion unless it is held on the same day as the general election, until the day
24 after that election. If the special election is held on the day of the gen-
25 eral election, the primary for the special election, if any, shall be held on
26 the day of the September primary. If the special election is held on the day
27 of the spring election, the primary for the special election, if any, shall be
28 held on the day of the spring primary.

1 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cL. 9.10 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 9.10 (1) (a) The qualified electors of the state, of any county, city,
4 village, town, ~~or~~ of any congressional, legislative, judicial or school
5 district, or of any prosecutorial unit may petition for the recall of any
6 incumbent elective official after the first year of the term for which the
7 official is elected by filing a petition with the same official or agency with
8 whom nomination papers or declarations of candidacy for the office are filed
9 demanding the recall of the officeholder.

10 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cm. 10.02 (3) (b) 2m of the statutes is amended to
11 read:

12 10.02 (3) (b) 2m. At the September primary, the elector shall select the
13 party ballot of his or her choice or the ballot containing the names of the
14 independent candidates for state office, and make a cross (X) in the square at
15 the right of or depress the lever or button next to the candidate's name for
16 each office for whom the elector intends to vote or insert or write in the
17 name of the elector's choice for a party candidate, if any. In order to
18 qualify for participation in the Wisconsin election campaign fund, a candidate
19 for state office at the September primary, other than a candidate for district
20 attorney, must receive at least 6% of all votes cast on all ballots for the
21 office for which he or she is a candidate, in addition to other requirements.

22 ••87b3086/2••SECTION 1cmm. 11.21 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 11.21 (5) Make the reports and statements filed with it available for
24 public inspection and copying, commencing as soon as practicable but not later
25 than the end of the 2nd day following the day during which they are received,
26 and permit copying of any report or statement by hand or by duplicating
27 machine at cost, as requested by any person. ~~Ne~~ The board shall require any
28 individual who inspects or copies a report or statement to sign a statement

1 affirming that the individual will not sell or utilize any information copied
2 from such reports and statements may be sold or utilized by any person the
3 report or statement for the purpose of soliciting contributions from indi-
4 viduals identified in the ~~reports or statements~~ report or statement, for the
5 purpose of attempting to influence legislative or administrative action, as
6 defined in s. 13.62, or for any commercial purpose.

7 ••87b3086/2••SECTION 1cmr. 11.22 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:
8 11.22 (8) Make the reports and statements filed with the filing officer
9 available for public inspection and copying, commencing as soon as practicable
10 but not later than the end of the 2nd day following the day during which they
11 are received, and permit copying of any report or statement by hand or by
12 duplicating machine at cost, as requested by any person. ~~No~~ The filing offi-
13 cer shall require any individual who inspects or copies a report or statement
14 to sign a statement affirming that the individual will not sell or utilize any
15 information copied from such reports and statements may be sold or utilized by
16 any person the report or statement for the purpose of soliciting contributions
17 from individuals identified in the ~~reports or statements~~ report or statement
18 or for any commercial purpose.

19 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cn. 11.26 (1) (cn) and (cw) and (2) (cn) and (cw)
20 of the statutes are amended to read:

21 11.26 (1) (cn) Candidates for circuit judge in circuits having a popu-
22 lation of more than 300,000, or candidates for district attorney in
23 prosecutorial units having a population of more than 300,000, \$3,000.

24 (cw) Candidates for circuit judge in other circuits or candidates for
25 district attorney in other prosecutorial units, \$1,000.

26 (2) (cn) Candidates for circuit judge in circuits having a population of
27 more than 300,000, or candidates for district attorney in prosecutorial units
28 having a population of more than 300,000, \$3,000.

1 (cw) Candidates for circuit judge in other circuits or candidates for
2 district attorney in other prosecutorial units, \$1,000.

3 ••87b3086/2••SECTION 1co. 11.27 (title) of the statutes is amended to
4 read:

5 11.27 (title) UNLAWFUL ACTS; LIABILITY.

6 ••87b3086/2••SECTION 1cog. 11.27 (1g) and (1r) of the statutes are
7 created to read:

8 11.27 (1g) No person may sell or utilize information copied from a report
9 or statement filed with the board for any purpose specified in s. 11.21 (5).

10 (1r) No person may sell or utilize information copied from a report or
11 statement filed with a filing officer other than the board for any purpose
12 specified in s. 11.22 (8).

13 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cp. 11.31 (1) (fm) of the statutes, as affected by
14 1987 Wisconsin Act (Assembly Bill 299), is amended to read:

15 11.31 (1) (fm) Candidates for circuit judge or district attorney,
16 \$86,250, except as provided in par. (g) 1. b.

17 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 1cq. 11.50 (1) (a) 1 and 2 of the statutes are
18 amended to read:

19 11.50 (1) (a) 1. With respect to a spring or general election, any indi-
20 vidual who is certified under s. 7.08 (2) (a) as a candidate in the spring
21 election for justice or state superintendent, or an individual who receives at
22 least 6% of the vote cast for all candidates on all ballots for any state
23 office, except district attorney, for which the individual is a candidate at
24 the September primary and who is certified under s. 7.08 (2) (a) as a candi-
25 date for state that office in the general election, or an individual who has
26 been lawfully appointed and certified to replace either such individual on the
27 ballot at the spring or general election; and who has qualified for a grant
28 under sub. (2).

1 2. With respect to a special election, an individual who is certified
2 under s. 8.50 (1) (d) as a candidate in a special election for state
3 superintendent, or an individual who is certified under s. 8.50 (1) (d) as a
4 candidate in a special election for any state office, except district
5 attorney, on the ballot or column of a party whose candidate for the same
6 office at the preceding general election received at least 6% of the vote cast
7 for all candidates on all ballots for the office, or an individual who has
8 been lawfully appointed and certified to replace either such individual on the
9 ballot at a special election, or an individual who receives at least 6% of the
10 vote cast for all candidates on all ballots for a any state office, except
11 district attorney, at a partisan special election; and who qualifies for a
12 grant under sub. (2). Where the boundaries of a district in which an indi-
13 vidual seeks office have been changed since the preceding general election
14 such that it is not possible to calculate the exact percentage of the vote
15 that is needed by that individual to qualify as an eligible candidate prior to
16 an election under this subdivision, the number of votes cast for all candi-
17 dates for the office at the preceding general election in each ward, combi-
18 nation of wards or municipality which is wholly contained within the bound-
19 aries of the newly formed district shall be calculated. If the candidate of
20 the political party on whose ballot or column the individual appears in the
21 newly formed district obtained at least 6% of the number of votes calculated,
22 the individual is deemed to qualify as an eligible candidate prior to the
23 election under this subdivision.

24 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 1k. 13.172 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

25 13.172 (1) In this section, "agency" means an office, department, agency,
26 institution of higher education, association, society or other body in state
27 government created or authorized to be created by the constitution or any law,

1 which is entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law, including the legis-
2 lature and the courts, and any authority created in ch. 231,~~233~~ or 234.

3 ••87b2886/1••SECTION 1m. 13.48 (26) of the statutes is created to read:

4 13.48 (26) CLEAN WATER ANNUAL FINANCE PLAN APPROVAL. The building
5 commission shall review the annual finance plan submitted to it by the
6 department of natural resources under s. 144.241 (4) and the recommendations
7 of the joint committee on finance and the standing committees to which the
8 annual finance plan was submitted under s. 144.241 (4) (a). The building
9 commission shall consider the extent to which the annual finance plan will
10 maintain the clean water fund in perpetuity, maintain the purchasing power of
11 the clean water fund, meet the requirements of s. 144.241 to provide financial
12 assistance for water quality pollution abatement needs and nonpoint source
13 water pollution management needs, and provide a stable and sustainable annual
14 level of financial assistance under s. 144.241 proportional to the state's
15 long-term water pollution abatement and management needs and priorities. The
16 building commission shall, after September 1 and on or before October 1
17 annually, either approve or disapprove the annual finance plan. When the
18 building commission approves the annual finance plan, the building commission
19 shall establish the total capital dollar amount, by source, available for
20 financial assistance commitments through the end of that fiscal year and the
21 composite annual interest rate which the total dollar amount shall yield, to
22 the extent practicable to accommodate administrative difficulties in achieving
23 the yield. If the building commission disapproves the annual finance plan, it
24 must notify the department of natural resources of its reasons for disap-
25 proving the plan.

26 ••87-5286/4••SECTION 3. 13.488 (1) (m) of the statutes is created to
27 read:

1 13.488 (1) (m) The duty to compute and make payments to the United States
2 required under 26 USC 148 (f) so that public debt, revenue obligations and
3 operating notes issued pursuant to ch. 18 will not be treated as arbitrage
4 bonds for the purpose of exclusion from gross income under 26 USC 103 (b) (2).
5 If the proceeds of an obligation are utilized for an activity that is financed
6 from program revenue, the building commission shall make the payment required
7 under this paragraph from that revenue.

8 ••87b3021/1••SECTION 3m. 13.489 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to
9 read:

10 13.489 (4) (b) The commission may include in the report in par. (a) its
11 designation of highway improvement projects under s. 84.013 (6m) or (6r) as
12 major highway projects.

13 ••87b3405/1••SECTION 3pg. 13.51 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended
14 to read:

15 13.51 (2) MEMBERS. (intro.) Members of the committee under pars. (c) to
16 ~~(e)~~ (f) shall hold office for 4 years beginning July 1 and until their suc-
17 cessors are appointed and qualified, but any member of the committee appointed
18 under pars. (c) to ~~(e)~~ (f) who ceases to be a member or representative of the
19 group represented shall immediately cease to be a member of the committee.
20 Any vacancy on the committee shall be filled as was the original appointment
21 and shall be filled for the balance of the unexpired term. The committee
22 shall consist of:

23 ••87b3405/1••SECTION 3pr. 13.51 (2) (f) of the statutes is created to
24 read:

25 13.51 (2) (f) One annuitant, as defined for purposes other than life
26 insurance under s. 40.02 (4), appointed by the governor.

27 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 4. 13.62 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 13.62 (2) "Agency" means any board, commission, committee, department or
2 officer in the state government, or any authority created in ch. 231,~~233~~ or
3 234.

4 ••87b3386/2••SECTION 4m. 13.94 (4) (a) 5 of the statutes is created to
5 read:

6 13.94 (4) (a) 5. A local service agency as defined in s. 101.35 (1) (d).

7 ••87b2674/2••SECTION 5g. 14.017 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

8 ••87b2674/2••SECTION 5r. 14.25 of the statutes is repealed.

9 ••87b3444/2••SECTION 5w. 15.01 (4) of the statutes, as affected by 1987
10 Wisconsin Act 27, is amended to read:

11 15.01 (4) "Council" means a part-time body appointed to function on a
12 continuing basis for the study, and recommendation of solutions and policy
13 alternatives, of the problems arising in a specified functional area of state
14 government, except the women's council has the powers and duties specified in
15 s. 16.01 (4) and the council on physical disabilities has the powers and
16 duties specified in s. 46.52 (1) and (2).

17 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 5wm. 15.01 (4) of the statutes, as affected by 1987
18 Wisconsin Acts 27 and (this act), is repealed and recreated to read:

19 15.01 (4) "Council" means a part-time body appointed to function on a
20 continuing basis for the study, and recommendation of solutions and policy
21 alternatives, of the problems arising in a specified functional area of state
22 government, except the women's council has the powers and duties specified in
23 s. 16.01 (4), the council on physical disabilities has the powers and duties
24 specified in s. 46.52 (1) and (2) and the prosecutors council has the powers
25 and duties specified in ch. 978.

26 ••87b3439/4••SECTION 5wu. 15.01 (6) of the statutes, as affected by 1987
27 Wisconsin Act 27, is repealed and recreated to read:

1 15.01 (6) "Division," "bureau," "section" and "unit" means the subunits
2 of a department, whether specifically created by law or created by the head of
3 the department for the more economic and efficient administration and oper-
4 ation of the programs assigned to the department. The office of justice
5 assistance in the department of administration has the meaning of "division"
6 under this subsection and the office of health care information in the subunit
7 of the department of health and social services having responsibility for
8 health has the meaning of "bureau" under this subsection.

9 ••87b3439/4••SECTION 5x. 15.02 (3) (c) 2 of the statutes is amended to
10 read:

11 15.02 (3) (c) 2. The principal subunit of the division is the "bureau".
12 Each bureau shall be headed by a "director". The office of health care
13 information in the subunit of the department of health and social services
14 having responsibility for health has the meaning of "bureau" under this
15 subdivision.

16 ••87b3405/1••SECTION 7m. 15.07 (1) (a) 3 of the statutes is amended to
17 read:

18 15.07 (1) (a) 3. Members of the employe trust funds board appointed under
19 s. 15.16 (1) (a) ~~and~~, (b) and (d) shall be appointed as provided in that
20 section.

21 ••87b2863/2••SECTION 9k. 15.07 (1) (a) 6 of the statutes is created to
22 read:

23 15.07 (1) (a) 6. Members of the economic stabilization board under s.
24 15.155 (3) shall be appointed as provided in that section.

25 ••87b2863/2••SECTION 9L. 15.07 (1) (cm) of the statutes, as affected by
26 1987 Wisconsin Acts 27 and 142, is amended to read:

27 15.07 (1) (cm) The terms of members of the personnel board shall expire
28 on July 1. The term of one member of the ethics board shall expire on each

1 May 1. The terms of 3 members of the development finance board, other than ex
2 officio members, shall expire on May 1 of every even-numbered year and the
3 terms of the other 4 members, other than ex officio members, shall expire on
4 May 1 of every odd-numbered year. The terms of 3 members of the economic
5 stabilization board, other than ex officio members, shall expire on May 1 of
6 every even-numbered year and the terms of the other 4 members, other than ex
7 officio members, shall expire on May 1 of every odd-numbered year. The terms
8 of members of the radioactive waste review board shall expire as specified
9 under s. 15.105 (11) (c). The terms of the 3 members of the land conservation
10 board appointed under s. 15.135 (4) (b) 2 shall expire on January 1. The
11 terms of members of the real estate board shall expire on July 1.

12 ••87b3439/4••SECTION 10g. 15.07 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to
13 read:

14 15.07 (2) (b) The chairperson of the board on health care information
15 shall be designated biennially by the governor.

16 ••87b3439/4••SECTION 10m. 15.07 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to
17 read:

18 15.07 (3) (b) ~~Each~~ Except as provided in par. (bm), each board not cov-
19 ered under par. (a) shall meet annually, and may meet at other times on the
20 call of the chairman or a majority of its members. The real estate board
21 shall also meet on the call of the secretary of the department of regulation
22 and licensing or his or her designee within the department.

23 ••87b3439/4••SECTION 10r. 15.07 (3) (bm) of the statutes is created to
24 read:

25 15.07 (3) (bm) The board on health care information shall meet 4 times
26 each year and may meet at other times on the call of the chairperson or a
27 majority of the board's members.

1 ••87-5039/2••SECTION 12. 15.07 (5) (d) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 15.07 (5) (d) Members of the board of agriculture, trade and consumer
4 protection, not exceeding \$10 \$35 per day as fixed by the board with the
5 approval of the governor, but not to exceed ~~\$600~~ \$1,000 per year.

6 ••87b3660/1••SECTION 12g. 15.08 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to
7 read:

8 15.08 (1m) (b) The public members of the chiropractic examining board,
9 the dentistry examining board, the hearing aid dealers and fitters examining
10 board, the medical examining board and its physical therapists examining
11 council, podiatry examining council, occupational therapy examining council
12 and council on physician's assistants, the board of nursing, the nursing home
13 administrator examining board, the veterinary examining board, the optometry
14 examining board, the pharmacy examining board and the psychology examining
15 board shall not be engaged in any profession or occupation concerned with the
16 delivery of physical or mental health care.

17 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 13. 15.155 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 15.155 (2) EMPLOYE OWNERSHIP BOARD. There is created an employe owner-
19 ship board attached to the department of development under s. 15.03 consisting
20 of the secretary of development or his or her designee, a representative from
21 the labor community and another member appointed by the governor, and the
22 director of the small business development center at the university of
23 Wisconsin ~~extension or the director's designee and the executive director of~~
24 ~~the community development finance authority.~~

25 ••87b2863/2••SECTION 13b. 15.155 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

26 15.155 (3) ECONOMIC STABILIZATION BOARD. There is created an economic
27 stabilization board attached to the department of development under s. 15.03

1 consisting of the members of the development finance board and the following
2 members:

3 (a) Two members of the senate, appointed by the president of the senate.

4 (b) Two members of the assembly, appointed by the speaker of the
5 assembly.

6 (c) One member representing the department of health and social services,
7 appointed by the secretary of health and social services.

8 (d) One member representing Forward Wisconsin, inc., appointed by the
9 governing body of Forward Wisconsin, inc.

10 (e) One member representing the Wisconsin housing and economic develop-
11 ment authority, appointed by the members of the Wisconsin housing and economic
12 development authority.

13 ••87b3405/1••SECTION 13c. 15.16 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended
14 to read:

15 15.16 (1) EMPLOYE TRUST FUNDS BOARD. (intro.) The employe trust funds
16 board shall consist of ~~11~~ 12 members. The board shall consist of the governor
17 or the governor's designee on the group insurance board, the secretary of
18 employment relations or the secretary's designee and ~~9~~ 10 persons appointed
19 for 4-year terms as follows:

20 ••87b3405/1••SECTION 13d. 15.16 (1) (d) of the statutes is created to
21 read:

22 15.16 (1)(d) One member shall be an annuitant, as defined for purposes
23 other than life insurance under s. 40.02 (4), appointed with the advice and
24 consent of the senate.

25 ••87b3439/4••SECTION 13g. 15.194 of the statutes is created to read:

26 15.194 SAME; OFFICES. (1) OFFICE OF HEALTH CARE INFORMATION. There is
27 created an office of health care information which is in the subunit of the
28 department of health and social services having responsibility for health.

1 The director of the office shall be appointed by the secretary of health and
2 social services, to serve at the pleasure of the secretary.

3 ••87b3439/4••SECTION 13j. 15.195 (6) of the statutes is created to read:
4 15.195 (6) BOARD ON HEALTH CARE INFORMATION. There is created a board on
5 health care information which is attached to the department of health and
6 social services under s. 15.03. The board shall consist of 7 members, a
7 majority of whom may neither be nor represent health care providers, appointed
8 for 4-year terms.

9 ••87b3444/2••SECTION 13k. 15.197 (21) of the statutes is created to read:
10 15.197 (21) COUNCIL ON PHYSICAL DISABILITIES. (a) Definitions. In this
11 subsection:

12 1. "Major life activity" means any of the following:

- 13 a. Self-care.
- 14 b. Performance of manual tasks unrelated to gainful employment.
- 15 c. Walking.
- 16 d. Receptive and expressive language.
- 17 e. Breathing.
- 18 f. Working.
- 19 g. Participating in educational programs.
- 20 h. Mobility, other than walking.
- 21 i. Capacity for independent living.

22 2. "Physical disability" means a physical condition, including an ana-
23 tomical loss or musculoskeletal, neurological, respiratory or cardiovascular
24 impairment, which results from injury, disease or congenital disorder and
25 which significantly interferes with or significantly limits at least one major
26 life activity of a person.

27 3. "Physically disabled person" means an individual having a physical
28 disability.

1 (b) Creation and membership. There is created in the department of
2 health and social services a council on physical disabilities. Section 15.09
3 applies to the council. The council shall consist of all of the following:

4 1. The governor, or his or her designee.

5 2. Two members of each house of the legislature, representing the major-
6 ity party and the minority party in each house, chosen as are the members of
7 standing committees in their respective houses.

8 3. Thirteen members, appointed by the governor for 3-year terms, under
9 the following criteria:

10 a. The members shall be appointed from citizens of this state who have a
11 demonstrated professional or personal interest in problems of physical dis-
12 ability and shall be selected so as to include a reasonably equitable repre-
13 sentation of those communities located in the state's urban and rural areas
14 and with regard to sex and race.

15 b. At least 6 members shall be physically disabled persons. Two members
16 may be parents, guardians or relatives of physically disabled persons.

17 c. At least one member shall be a provider of services to physically
18 disabled persons.

19 •87b3486/1•SECTION 13kg. 15.227 (18) of the statutes is created to
20 read:

21 15.227 (18) PETROLEUM STORAGE ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP COUNCIL. There is
22 created in the department of industry, labor and human relations a petroleum
23 storage environmental cleanup council consisting of 5 members appointed for
24 4-year terms and the secretaries of natural resources and industry, labor and
25 human relations, or their designees. The governor shall appoint the members,
26 other than ex officio members, to the council from lists of names submitted by
27 the secretary of natural resources and by the secretary of industry, labor and
28 human relations. In preparing the lists, each secretary shall consider

1 representatives from petroleum product transporters, manufacturers, suppliers,
2 retailers and wholesalers, hydrogeologists and environmental scientists,
3 consultants, contractors and engineers.

4 ••87b2714/3••SECTION 13m. 15.347 (8) of the statutes is repealed.

5 ••87b2710/2••SECTION 13r. 15.347 (15) of the statutes is created to read:
6 15.347 (15) MILWAUKEE RIVER REVITALIZATION COUNCIL. There is created in
7 the department of natural resources a Milwaukee river revitalization council
8 consisting of:

9 (a) The secretary of natural resources or his or her designee.

10 (b) The secretary of development or his or her designee.

11 (c) Nine members appointed by the governor for 3-year terms.

12 ••87b3660/1••SECTION 13rm. 15.407 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to
13 read:

14 15.407 (1) (c) Occupational therapists. There is created an occupational
15 therapy examining council consisting of 5 members appointed by the medical
16 examining board for 3-year terms. Two members shall be occupational thera-
17 pists certified under ch. 448 who have performed or taught occupational ther-
18 apy or performed research in occupational therapy for at least 3 years prior
19 to appointment. One member shall be an occupational therapy assistant certi-
20 fied under ch. 448. Two members shall be public members.

21 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 13s. 15.83 of the statutes is created to read:

22 15.83 PROSECUTORS COUNCIL. There is created a prosecutors council con-
23 sisting of all of the following:

24 (1) Ten district attorneys elected by the district attorneys of the
25 respective prosecution districts for 3-year terms. Terms shall commence on
26 the first Monday in January following the election.

27 (2) The attorney general or his or her designee.

1 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 14. 16.01 (1) (b) of the statutes, as affected by
2 1987 Wisconsin Act 27, is amended to read:

3 16.01 (1) (b) "Agency" means any office, department, agency, institution
4 of higher education, association, society or other body in state government
5 created or authorized to be created by the constitution or any law which is
6 entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law, including the legislature and
7 the courts, and any authority created under ch. 231,~~233~~ or 234.

8 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 14m. 16.20 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to
9 read:

10 16.20 (1) (g) "State agency" has the meaning specified ~~for agency~~ under
11 s. 227.01 (1) but also includes the office of district attorney.

12 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 15. 16.41 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 16.41 (4) In this section, "authority" means a body created under ch.
14 231,~~233~~ or 234.

15 ••87b3363/1••SECTION 15m. 16.417 (2) of the statutes, as affected by 1987
16 Wisconsin Act (Senate Bill 315), is amended to read:

17 16.417 (2) No individual who is employed or retained in a full-time
18 position or capacity with an agency or authority may hold any other position
19 or be retained in any other capacity with an agency or authority from which
20 the individual receives directly or indirectly, more than \$5,000 from the
21 agency or authority as compensation for the individual's services during the
22 same year. No agency or authority may employ any individual or enter into
23 any contract in violation of this subsection. The department shall annually
24 check to assure that no individual violates this subsection. The department
25 shall order any individual whom it finds to be in violation of this subsection
26 to forfeit that portion of the economic gain that the individual realized in
27 violation of this subsection. The attorney general, when requested by the
28 department, shall institute proceedings to recover any forfeiture incurred

1 under this subsection which is not paid by the individual against whom it is
2 assessed. This subsection does not apply to an individual who has a full-time
3 appointment for less than 12 months, during any period of time that is not
4 included in the appointment.

5 ••87b2988/1••SECTION 17g. 16.501 of the statutes is renumbered 16.501 (1)
6 and amended to read:

7 16.501 (1) No funds appropriated under s. 20.143 (1) (bm) may be expended
8 until the department of development submits to the secretary a report setting
9 forth the amount of private contributions received by Forward Wisconsin, inc.,
10 since the date the department of development last submitted a report under
11 this section subsection. After receiving the report, the secretary may
12 approve the expenditure of funds up to the amount set forth in the report.
13 Total funds expended in any fiscal year may not exceed the amounts in the
14 schedule under s. 20.143 (1) (bm).

15 ••87b2988/1••SECTION 17h. 16.501 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

16 16.501 (2) Forward Wisconsin, inc., shall expend funds appropriated under
17 s. 20.143 (1) (bm) in adherence with the uniform travel schedule amounts
18 approved under s. 20.916 (8). Forward Wisconsin, inc., may not expend funds
19 appropriated under s. 20.143 (1) (bm) on entertainment, foreign travel, pay-
20 ments to persons not providing goods or services to Forward Wisconsin, inc.,
21 or for other purposes prohibited by contract between Forward Wisconsin, inc.,
22 and the department.

23 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 20. 16.52 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 16.52 (7) PETTY CASH ACCOUNT. With the approval of the secretary, each
25 agency which is authorized to maintain a contingent fund under s. 20.920 may
26 establish a petty cash account from its contingent fund. The procedure for
27 operation and maintenance of petty cash accounts and the character of
28 expenditures therefrom shall be prescribed by the secretary. In this

1 subsection, "agency" means an office, department, independent agency, insti-
2 tution of higher education, association, society or other body in state
3 government created or authorized to be created by the constitution or any law,
4 which is entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law, including the legis-
5 lature and the courts, but not including an authority created in ch. 231,~~233~~
6 or 234.

7 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 21. 16.528 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 16.528 (1) DEFINITION. In this section, "agency" means an office,
9 department, independent agency, institution of higher education, association,
10 society or other body in state government created or authorized to be created
11 by the constitution or any law, which is entitled to expend moneys appropri-
12 ated by law, including the legislature and the courts, but not including an
13 authority created in ch. 231,~~233~~ or 234.

14 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 22. 16.53 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 16.53 (2) IMPROPER INVOICES. If an agency receives an improperly com-
16 pleted invoice, the agency shall notify the sender of the invoice within 10
17 working days after it receives the invoice of the reason it is improperly
18 completed. In this subsection, "agency" means an office, department, inde-
19 pendent agency, institution of higher education, association, society or other
20 body in state government created or authorized to be created by the constitu-
21 tion or any law, which is entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law,
22 including the legislature and the courts, but not including an authority
23 created in ch. 231,~~233~~ or 234.

24 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 23. 16.54 (9) (a) 1 of the statutes is amended to
25 read:

26 16.54 (9) (a) 1. "Agency" means an office, department, independent
27 agency, institution of higher education, association, society or other body in
28 state government created or authorized to be created by the constitution or

1 any law, which is entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law, including the
2 legislature and the courts, but not including an authority created in ch. 231,
3 233 or 234.

4 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 24. 16.70 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 16.70 (1) "Agency" means an office, department, agency, institution of
6 higher education, association, society or other body in state government
7 created or authorized to be created by the constitution or any law, which is
8 entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law, including the legislature, and
9 the courts ~~and the community development finance authority~~, but not including
10 ~~any other~~ an authority.

11 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 25. 16.70 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 16.70 (2) "Authority" means a body created under ch. 231, ~~233~~ or 234.

13 ••87b3383/1••SECTION 25b. 16.705 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 16.705
14 (1) (a) and amended to read:

15 16.705 (1) (a) The Except as provided in par. (b), the department or its
16 agents may contract for services which can be performed more economically or
17 efficiently by such contract.

18 ••87b3383/1••SECTION 25bc. 16.705 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to
19 read:

20 16.705 (1) (b) The department or its agents are prohibited from con-
21 tracting for the cleaning or maintenance of any property for which the
22 department has managing authority under s. 16.84 (1) on or after the effective
23 date of this paragraph [revisor inserts date], unless the department
24 originally contracted for the cleaning or maintenance of that property prior
25 to that date.

26 ••87b2575/1••SECTION 25d. 16.75 (1) (a) 1 of the statutes, as affected by
27 1987 Wisconsin Act 27, is amended to read:

1 16.75 (1) (a) 1. All orders awarded or contracts made by the department
2 for all materials, supplies, equipment and contractual services, except as
3 otherwise provided in par. (c) and subs. (1m), (2), (2g), (2m), (3m), (3s),
4 (3t), (6), and (7) ~~and (8)~~ and ss. 16.754, 46.265, 50.05 (7) (f) and 144.48
5 (7), shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, taking into consider-
6 ation life cycle cost estimates under sub. (1m), when appropriate, the loca-
7 tion of the agency, the quantities of the articles to be supplied, their
8 conformity with the specifications, and the purposes for which they are
9 required and the date of delivery.

10 ••87b2575/1••SECTION 25h. 16.75 (1) (a) 3 of the statutes, as affected by
11 1987 Wisconsin Act 27, is amended to read:

12 16.75 (1) (a) 3. Bids may be received only in accordance with such
13 specifications as are adopted by the department as provided in this
14 subsection. Any or all bids may be rejected. Each bid, with the name of the
15 bidder, shall be entered on a record, and each record with the successful bid
16 indicated shall, after the award or letting of the contract, be opened to
17 public inspection. Where a low bid is rejected, a complete written record
18 shall be compiled and filed, giving the reason in full for such action. Any
19 waiver of sealed, advertised bids as provided in sub. (2m) or (6) ~~or of the~~
20 ~~purchasing prohibition provided in sub. (8)~~ shall be entered on a record kept
21 by the department and open to public inspection.

22 ••87b2575/1••SECTION 25p. 16.75 (3m) (b) of the statutes is amended to
23 read:

24 16.75 (3m) (b) The department and any agency making purchases under s.
25 16.74 shall attempt to ensure that 5% of the total amount expended under this
26 subchapter in each fiscal year is paid to minority businesses. Except as
27 provided under ~~subs.~~ sub. (7) ~~and (8)~~, the department may purchase materials,
28 supplies, equipment and contractual services from any minority business sub-

1 mitting a qualified responsible competitive bid that is no more than 5% higher
2 than the apparent low bid or competitive proposal that is no more than 5%
3 higher than the most advantageous offer, unless the department is required
4 under sub. (3s) to award the order or contract to a sheltered workshop. In
5 administering the preference for minority businesses established in this
6 paragraph, the department and any agency making purchases under s. 16.74 shall
7 maximize the use of minority businesses which are incorporated under ch. 180
8 or which have their principal place of business in this state.

9 ••87b2575/1••SECTION 25t. 16.75 (8) of the statutes, as affected by 1987
10 Wisconsin Act 27, is repealed.

11 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 26. 16.85 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:
12 16.85 (2) To furnish engineering, architectural, project management and
13 other building construction services whenever requisitions therefor are pre-
14 sented to the department by any agency. The department may deposit moneys
15 received from the provision of these services in the account under s. 20.505
16 (1) (kc) or in the general fund as general purpose revenue -- earned. In this
17 subsection, "agency" means an office, department, independent agency, insti-
18 tution of higher education, association, society or other body in state
19 government created or authorized to be created by the constitution or any law,
20 which is entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law, including the legis-
21 lature and the courts, but not including an authority created in ch. 231, ~~233~~
22 or 234.

23 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 27. 16.865 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:
24 16.865 (8) On July 1 of each year, allocate as a charge to agencies a
25 proportionate share of the estimated cost attributable to programs not funded
26 from general purpose revenue to be paid from the appropriations under s.
27 20.865 (1) (dm), (f) and (fm). Costs may be charged to and collected from
28 agencies on an estimated or premium basis and paid from the appropriations on

1 an actual basis. The department shall deposit all collections in the general
2 fund as general purpose revenue--earned. In this subsection, "agency" means
3 an office, department, independent agency, institution of higher education,
4 association, society or other body in state government created or authorized
5 to be created by the constitution or any law, which is entitled to expend
6 moneys appropriated by law, including the legislature and the courts, but not
7 including an authority created in ch. 231,~~233~~ or 234.

8 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 28. 16.963 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 16.963 (2) The council, if created, may utilize staff resources made
10 available to it by agencies as defined in s. 16.52 (7), authorities created
11 under ch. 231,~~233~~ or 234 or private sector sources.

12 ••87-5185/2••SECTION 29. 16.98 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 16.98 (1) The department shall engage in such activities as the secretary
14 deems necessary to ensure the maximum utilization of federal resources by
15 state agencies and institutions and other eligible organizations and units of
16 government, including community development corporations ~~and the community~~
17 ~~development finance authority~~ as defined in s. ~~233.02 (1) and (3)~~ 234.94 (2).
18 The department shall acquire excess and surplus real and personal property at
19 such cost to the recipient as is necessary to amortize expenditures for
20 transportation, packing, crating, handling and program overhead.

21 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29c. 17.01 (2) and (7) of the statutes are amended
22 to read:

23 17.01 (2) By the secretary of state, treasurer, attorney general, state
24 superintendent, by a district attorney and by all officers appointed by the
25 governor alone or by him by and with the advice and consent of the senate, to
26 the governor.

27 (7) By a county supervisor, county clerk, county treasurer, coroner,
28 ~~district attorney~~, register of deeds or county surveyor, to the sheriff, who

1 shall immediately transmit a notice thereof, in case of a coroner, ~~district~~
2 ~~attorney~~ or register of deeds, to the governor; and in case of a county
3 supervisor, county clerk, county treasurer or surveyor, to the chairperson of
4 the county board; and after such notices the sheriff shall file such resigna-
5 tions with the county clerk.

6 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29d. 17.03 (4) (bm) of the statutes is created to
7 read:

8 17.03 (4) (bm) If the office is a district attorney, the prosecutorial
9 unit from which elected; or

10 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29f. 17.06 (title) of the statutes is amended to
11 read:

12 17.06 (title) REMOVAL OF STATE OFFICERS; IMPEACHMENT; ADDRESS.

13 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29g. 17.06 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

14 17.06 (3) A district attorney may be removed by the governor, for cause.

15 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29h. 17.09 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 17.09 (5) OTHER ELECTIVE COUNTY OFFICERS. The sheriff, coroner, or
17 register of deeds ~~or district attorney~~, by the governor, for cause.

18 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29i. 17.11 (2) of the statutes is repealed and re-
19 created to read:

20 17.11 (2) (a) The state shall pay an attorney temporarily appointed under
21 sub. (1) for his or her services and expenses in an amount determined and
22 fixed by the governor.

23 (b) The county in which a person is temporarily appointed sheriff under
24 sub. (1) shall pay the appointed sheriff for his or her services in an amount
25 determined and fixed by the governor and certified by the governor to the
26 county clerk of the county.

27 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29j. 17.11 (4) of the statutes is repealed and re-
28 created to read:

1 17.11 (4) If it is determined in the action or proceeding or is found
2 upon the investigation that a district attorney or sheriff suspended under
3 this section is not guilty of an offense, or has not wilfully neglected or
4 refused to perform his or her duties, as charged, that fact shall be certified
5 by the governor to the prosecutors council under s. 978.11 if a district
6 attorney is involved or to the county clerk of the sheriff's county if a
7 sheriff is involved. Upon the certification, the district attorney or sheriff
8 shall be:

9 (a) Entitled to the emoluments of the office for the time he or she would
10 have served in the office had he or she not been suspended under this section;
11 and

12 (b) Restored to office if the term for which he or she was elected or
13 appointed has not expired.

14 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29k. 17.19 (3s) of the statutes is created to read:
15 17.19 (3s) DISTRICT ATTORNEY. In the office of district attorney, by
16 appointment of the governor for the residue of the unexpired term and until a
17 successor is elected and qualified.

18 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29L. 17.21 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:
19 17.21 (1) SHERIFF, CORONER, ETC. In the office of sheriff, coroner, or
20 register of deeds ~~or district attorney~~, by appointment by the governor for the
21 residue of the unexpired term.

22 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29n. 19.01 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to
23 read:

24 19.01 (4) (a) In the office of the secretary of state: Of all members
25 and officers of the legislature; of the governor, lieutenant governor and
26 state superintendent; of the justices, reporter and clerk of the supreme
27 court; of the judges of the court of appeals; of the judges and reporters of
28 the circuit courts; of all notaries public; of every officer, except the

1 secretary of state, state treasurer, district attorney and attorney general,
2 whose compensation is paid in whole or in part out of the state treasury,
3 including every member or appointee of a board or commission whose compen-
4 sation is so paid; and of every deputy or assistant of an officer who files
5 with the secretary of state;

6 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29p. 19.10 of the statutes is amended to read:

7 19.10 OATHS. Each of the officers enumerated in s. 8.25 (4) (a) shall
8 take and subscribe the oath of office prescribed by article IV, section 28, of
9 the constitution, as follows: The governor and lieutenant governor, before
10 entering upon the duties of office; the secretary of state, treasurer, attor-
11 ney general and, state superintendent and each district attorney, within 20
12 days after receiving notice of election and before entering upon the duties of
13 office.

14 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 29q. 19.42 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 19.42 (5) "Department" means the legislature, the university of Wisconsin
16 system, any authority or public corporation created and regulated by an act of
17 the legislature and any office, department, independent agency or legislative
18 service agency created under ch. 13, 14 or 15, any vocational, technical and
19 adult education district ~~or~~ any constitutional office other than a judicial
20 office and, in the case of a district attorney, the prosecutors council.

21 ••87-5296/3••SECTION 30. 19.42 (10) (k) of the statutes is created to
22 read:

23 19.42 (10) (k) The executive director, executive assistant to the execu-
24 tive director and investment directors of the investment board.

25 ••87-5296/3••SECTION 31. 19.42 (13) (j) of the statutes is created to
26 read:

27 19.42 (13) (j) The executive director, executive assistant to the execu-
28 tive director and investment directors of the investment board.

1 ••87-5296/3••SECTION 32. 19.43 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:
2 19.43 (5) Each member of the investment board and each employe of the
3 investment board ~~identified in s. 20.923~~ who is a state public official shall
4 complete and file with the ethics board a quarterly report of economic trans-
5 actions no later than the last day of the month following the end of each
6 calendar quarter during any portion of which he or she was a member or employe
7 of the investment board. Such reports of economic transactions shall be in
8 the form prescribed by the ethics board and shall identify the date and nature
9 of any purchase, sale, put, call, option, lease, or creation, dissolution or
10 modification of any economic interest made during the quarter for which the
11 report is filed and disclosure of which would be required by s. 19.44 if a
12 statement of economic interests were being filed.

13 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 32c. 19.43 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:
14 19.43 (7) If an official required to file fails to make a timely filing,
15 the board shall promptly provide notice of the delinquency to the state
16 treasurer, and to the chief executive of the department of which the
17 official's office or position is a part, or, in the case of a district
18 attorney, to the chief executive of that department and to the county clerk of
19 each county served by the district attorney or in the case of a municipal
20 judge to the clerk of the municipality of which the official's office is a
21 part, or in the case of a justice, court of appeals judge or circuit judge, to
22 the director of state courts. Upon such notification both the state treasurer
23 and the department, municipality or director shall withhold all payments for
24 compensation, reimbursement of expenses and other obligations to the official
25 until the board notifies the officers to whom notice of the delinquency was
26 provided that the official has complied with this section.

27 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 32d. 19.45 (9) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 19.45 (9) The attorney general may not engage in the private practice of
2 law during the period in which he or she holds that office. No justice of the
3 supreme court and no judge of any court of record may engage in the private
4 practice of law during the period in which he or she holds that office. No
5 district attorney may engage in the private practice of law during the period
6 in which he or she holds that office, except as authorized in s. 978.06 (5).

7 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 32e. 19.51 (1) (a) and (3) of the statutes are
8 amended to read:

9 19.51 (1) (a) A recommendation for criminal prosecution which shall be
10 referred to the district attorney in whose jurisdiction the alleged violation
11 occurred or to the attorney general if the violation concerns the district
12 attorney, and, if the district attorney fails to commence a prosecution within
13 30 days, to the attorney general, who may then commence a prosecution; or

14 (3) If the board makes a recommendation for criminal prosecution under
15 sub. (1), the district attorney to whom the recommendation is made or the
16 attorney general shall, within 30 days of receipt of such recommendation, make
17 a decision whether to prosecute the party charged. The board shall give
18 written notice of any referral under this subsection to the accused. The
19 district attorney or attorney general shall give written notice of the deci-
20 sion to the accused, the complainant and the board.

21 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 32f. 19.55 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to
22 read:

23 19.55 (2) (b) Records obtained or prepared by the board in connection
24 with an investigation, except that the board shall permit inspection of
25 records that are made public in the course of a hearing by the board to
26 determine if a violation of this subchapter has occurred. Whenever the board
27 refers such investigation and hearing records to a district attorney or to the

1 attorney general, they may be made public in the course of a prosecution ini-
2 tiated under this subchapter.

3 ••87b3371/1••SECTION 32g. 19.56 (2) (b) 5 of the statutes is amended to
4 read:

5 19.56 (2) (b) 5. Is paid by the department or municipality of which the
6 official's state public office is a part, or, in the case of a district
7 attorney, is paid by that department or a county which the district attorney
8 serves, or, in the case of a justice or judge of a court of record, is paid
9 from the appropriations for operation of the state court system.

10 ••87b3018/1••SECTION 32m. 19.85 (1) (k) of the statutes is created to
11 read:

12 19.85 (1) (k) Conferring with legal counsel, engineers and expert wit-
13 nesses and developing negotiation and arbitration proposals under s. 144.445.

14 ••87b2994/1••SECTION 32s. 20.002 (1) of the statutes, as affected by 1987
15 Wisconsin Act 4, is repealed and recreated to read:

16 20.002 (1) EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF APPROPRIATIONS. Unless otherwise provided
17 appropriations shall become effective on July 1 of the fiscal year shown in
18 the schedule under s. 20.005 and shall be expendable until the following June
19 30. If the legislature does not amend or eliminate any existing appropriation
20 on or before July 1 of the odd-numbered years, such existing appropriations
21 provided for the previous fiscal year shall be in effect in the new fiscal
22 year and all subsequent fiscal years until amended or eliminated by the
23 legislature. If the biennial state budget has not been enacted on or before
24 June 30 of the odd-numbered year, the department of administration may, for
25 accounting purposes, adjust its appropriation account structure, beginning on
26 July 1 of the odd-numbered year, to reflect the appropriation account struc-
27 ture in the biennial state budget.

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|------|---------|---------------------|
| 1 | <u>DEPARTMENT OF</u> | | | |
| 2 | (1) FOOD AND TRADE REGULATION | | | |
| 3 | (a) General program operations | GPR | A | -0- -0- |
| 4 | Food inspection | GPR | A | 1,860,400 2,118,700 |
| 5 | Plant industry services | GPR | A | 531,900 1,079,900 |
| 6 | Trade and consumer protection | GPR | A | 1,536,600 1,542,700 |
| 7 | General laboratory services | GPR | A | 1,013,200 -0- |
| 8 | NET APPROPRIATION | | | 4,942,100 4,741,300 |
| 9 | (b) Meat and poultry inspection | GPR | A | 1,780,000 1,780,000 |
| 10 | (c) Warehouse keeper and grain | | | |
| 11 | dealer regulation | GPR | A | 171,600 171,600 |
| 12 | (d) Groundwater laboratory | | | |
| 13 | services | GPR | A | 148,400 148,400 |
| 14 | (g) Related services | PR | A | 112,800 48,800 |
| 15 | (ga) Milk standards program | PR | C | 136,900 136,900 |
| 16 | (gb) Food regulation | PR | A | 1,860,400 2,174,500 |
| 17 | (h) Fertilizer research | | | |
| 18 | assessments | PR | C | 160,000 160,000 |
| 19 | (ha) Liming material research | | | |
| 20 | funds | PR | A | 16,200 16,200 |
| 21 | (i) Pesticide certification and | | | |
| 22 | regulation | PR | A | 463,400 468,400 |
| 23 | (im) Unfair sales act enforcement | PR | A | 65,000 65,000 |
| 24 | (j) Weights and measures | | | |
| 25 | inspection | PR | A | 214,100 183,800 |
| 26 | (jm) Warehouse keeper and grain | | | |
| 27 | dealer regulation | PR | C | 56,800 56,800 |
| 28 | (k) Dairy trade regulation | PR | A | 156,300 156,300 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------|------|------------|--------------|
| 1 | (m) Federal funds | PR-F | C | 2,265,800 | 2,267,400 |
| 2 | (q) Automobile repair regulation | SEG | A | 217,200 | 217,200 |
| 3 | (s) Groundwater--standards; | | | | |
| 4 | implementation | SEG | A | 191,500 | 224,300 |
| (1) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | | |
| | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 7,042,100 | 6,841,300 |
| | PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 5,507,700 | 5,734,100 |
| | FEDERAL | (| | 2,265,800) | (2,267,400) |
| | OTHER | (| | 3,241,900) | (3,466,700) |
| | SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 408,700 | 441,500 |
| | OTHER | (| | 408,700) | (441,500) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 12,958,500 | 13,016,900 |
| 5 | (2) ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH | | | | |
| 6 | SERVICES | | | | |
| 7 | (a) General program operations | GPR | A | -0- | -0- |
| 8 | Animal health services | GPR | A | 2,670,100 | 2,680,500 |
| 9 | Plant health services | GPR | A | 694,100 | 694,100 |
| 10 | NET APPROPRIATION | | | 3,364,200 | 3,374,600 |
| 11 | (b) Animal disease indemnities | GPR | S | 36,000 | 46,000 |
| 12 | (c) Pseudorabies control program; | | | | |
| 13 | administration | GPR | A | 132,000 | 132,000 |
| 14 | (g) Related services | PR | A | 1,054,900 | 1,625,900 |
| 15 | (gb) Animal health and disease | | | | |
| 16 | research; gifts and grants | PR | C | -0- | -0- |
| 17 | (gm) Seed testing and labeling | PR | C | 23,900 | 23,900 |
| 18 | (h) Sale of supplies | PR | A | 62,500 | 62,500 |
| 19 | (hm) Dead animal regulation | PR | C | 7,500 | 7,500 |
| 20 | (i) Mink research assessments | PR | A | 6,000 | 6,000 |
| 21 | (j) Dog licenses, rabies control | | | | |
| 22 | and related services | PR | A | 102,700 | 102,700 |
| 23 | (m) Federal funds | PR-F | C | 134,600 | 134,600 |

(2) PROGRAM TOTALS

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|--------|------|------------|--------------|
| | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 3,532,200 | 3,552,600 |
| | PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 1,392,100 | 1,963,100 |
| | FEDERAL | (| | 134,600) | (134,600) |
| | OTHER | (| | 1,257,500) | (1,828,500) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 4,924,300 | 5,515,700 |
| 1 | (3) MARKETING SERVICES | | | | |
| 2 | (a) General program operations | GPR | A | -0- | -0- |
| 3 | Agricultural services | GPR | A | 1,182,900 | 1,182,900 |
| 4 | Management information | | | | |
| 5 | services | GPR | A | 740,000 | 772,600 |
| 6 | NET APPROPRIATION | | | 1,922,900 | 1,955,500 |
| 7 | (g) Related services | PR | A | 878,200 | 900,000 |
| 8 | (h) Grain regulation--Milwaukee | PR | A | 800,400 | 572,200 |
| 9 | (i) Marketing orders and | | | | |
| 10 | agreements | PR | C | 24,100 | 24,100 |
| 11 | (j) Grain regulation--Superior | PR | A | 2,832,100 | 2,751,300 |
| 12 | (k) Potato board; assessments | PR | A | 357,500 | 357,500 |
| 13 | (m) Federal funds | PR-F | C | -0- | -0- |
| | (3) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | |
| | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 1,922,900 | 1,955,500 |
| | PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 4,892,300 | 4,605,100 |
| | FEDERAL | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| | OTHER | (| | 4,892,300) | (4,605,100) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 6,815,200 | 6,560,600 |
| 14 | (4) AGRICULTURAL ASSISTANCE | | | | |
| 15 | (a) Aid to Wisconsin livestock | | | | |
| 16 | breeders association | GPR | A | 27,200 | 27,200 |
| 17 | (b) Aids to county and district | | | | |
| 18 | fairs | GPR | A | 368,500 | 368,500 |
| 19 | (e) Premium aids to world dairy | | | | |
| 20 | expo, inc. | GPR | A | 53,300 | 53,300 |
| | (4) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | |
| | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 449,000 | 449,000 |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 449,000 | 449,000 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|------------------------------------|--------------------|------|------------|------------|
| 1 | (5) STATE FAIR PARK | | | | |
| 2 | (h) State fair operations | PR | A | 6,854,000 | 6,854,000 |
| 3 | (i) State fair capital expenses | PR | C | 224,000 | 224,000 |
| 4 | (j) State fair principal | | | | |
| 5 | repayment, interest and | | | | |
| 6 | rebates | PR | S | 646,600 | 637,500 |
| | | (5) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | |
| | PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 7,724,600 | 7,715,500 |
| | OTHER | (| | 7,724,600) | 7,715,500) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 7,724,600 | 7,715,500 |
| 7 | (7) LAND CONSERVATION AND FARMLAND | | | | |
| 8 | PRESERVATION | | | | |
| 9 | (a) General program operations | GPR | A | 647,300 | 647,300 |
| 10 | (c) Soil and water resource | | | | |
| 11 | management program | GPR | C | 2,304,500 | 2,304,500 |
| 12 | (g) Agricultural impact | | | | |
| 13 | statements | PR | C | 69,500 | 69,500 |
| 14 | (k) Funds received from other | | | | |
| 15 | state agencies | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 16 | (m) Federal funds | PR-F | C | -0- | -0- |
| | | (7) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | |
| | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 2,951,800 | 2,951,800 |
| | PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 69,500 | 69,500 |
| | FEDERAL | (| | -0-) | -0-) |
| | OTHER | (| | 69,500) | 69,500) |
| | SERVICE | (| | -0-) | -0-) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 3,021,300 | 3,021,300 |
| 17 | (8) CENTRAL ADMINISTRATIVE | | | | |
| 18 | SERVICES | | | | |
| 19 | (a) General program operations | GPR | A | 1,592,800 | 1,499,000 |
| 20 | (b) Emergency loan processing | GPR | A | -0- | -0- |
| 21 | (g) Gifts and grants | PR | C | 129,000 | 109,000 |
| 22 | (h) Sale of supplies | PR | A | 42,300 | 42,300 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|---|--------|------|-------------|---------------|
| 1 (ig) Plat review | PR | A | -0- | 147,300 |
| 2 (j) Stray voltage program | PR | A | -0- | 93,400 |
| 3 (k) Central auto pool | PR-S | C | 178,400 | 178,400 |
| 4 (km) General laboratory services | PR-S | A | -0- | 1,421,800 |
| 5 (pz) Indirect cost reimbursements | PR-F | C | 187,500 | 187,500 |
| (8) P R O G R A M T O T A L S | | | | |
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 1,592,800 | 1,499,000 |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 537,200 | 2,179,700 |
| FEDERAL | (| | 187,500) | (187,500) |
| OTHER | (| | 171,300) | (392,000) |
| SERVICE | (| | 178,400) | (1,600,200) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 2,130,000 | 3,678,700 |
| 6 (9) FARM MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION | | | | |
| 7 PROGRAM | | | | |
| 8 (a) General program operations | GPR | A | 170,900 | 153,300 |
| (9) P R O G R A M T O T A L S | | | | |
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 170,900 | 153,300 |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 170,900 | 153,300 |
| 2 0 . 1 1 5 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S | | | | |
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 17,661,700 | 17,402,500 |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 20,123,400 | 22,267,000 |
| FEDERAL | (| | 2,587,900) | (2,589,500) |
| OTHER | (| | 17,357,100) | (18,077,300) |
| SERVICE | (| | 178,400) | (1,600,200) |
| SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 408,700 | 441,500 |
| OTHER | (| | 408,700) | (441,500) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 38,193,800 | 40,111,000 |
| 9 <u>20.124 BANKING, OFFICE OF THE</u> | | | | |
| 10 <u>COMMISSIONER OF</u> | | | | |
| 11 (1) SUPERVISION OF BANKS AND | | | | |
| 12 RELATED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS | | | | |
| 13 (a) Losses on public deposits | GPR | S | -0- | -0- |
| 14 (g) General program operations | PR | A | 3,564,900 | 3,529,100 |
| 15 (u) State deposit fund | SEG | S | -0- | -0- |
| 2 0 . 1 2 4 D E P A R T M E N T T O T A L S | | | | |
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | -0- | -0- |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 3,564,900 | 3,529,100 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|--------|------|------------|--------------|
| OTHER | (| | 3,564,900) | (3,529,100) |
| SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | -0- | -0- |
| OTHER | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 3,564,900 | 3,529,100 |

1 20.141 CREDIT UNIONS, OFFICE OF THE2 COMMISSIONER OF

3 (1) SUPERVISION OF CREDIT UNIONS

| | | | | |
|----------------------------------|----|---|------------|--------------|
| 4 (g) General program operations | PR | A | 1,020,700 | 1,067,100 |
| 20.141 DEPARTMENT TOTALS | | | | |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 1,020,700 | 1,067,100 |
| OTHER | (| | 1,020,700) | (1,067,100) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 1,020,700 | 1,067,100 |

5 20.143 DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF

6 (1) ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY

7 DEVELOPMENT

| | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|-----|---|-----------|------------|
| 8 (a) General program operations | GPR | A | 2,815,500 | 3,517,500 |
| 9 (b) Economic development | | | | |
| 10 promotion | GPR | A | 127,000 | 177,000 |
| 11 (bm) Aid to Forward Wisconsin, | | | | |
| 12 inc. | GPR | A | 500,000 | 500,000 |
| 13 (c) Wisconsin development fund; | | | | |
| 14 grants and loans | GPR | B | 5,000,000 | 978,000 |
| 15 (d) Wisconsin development fund; | | | | |
| 16 major grants and loans | GPR | B | -0- | 15,000,000 |
| 17 (dm) Grants to regional planning | | | | |
| 18 commissions | GPR | B | 100,000 | -0- |
| 19 (dr) Main street program | GPR | A | 37,500 | 170,000 |
| 20 (f) Employee ownership assistance | | | | |
| 21 loans | GPR | B | 50,000 | 50,000 |
| 22 (g) Gifts, grants and proceeds | PR | C | 20,100 | 20,100 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|--------------------------------------|--------|------|-------------|---------------|
| 1 (h) Economic development | | | | |
| 2 operations | PR | A | 30,600 | 30,600 |
| 3 (i) Plat review | PR | A | 147,300 | -0- |
| 4 (ie) Wisconsin development fund, | | | | |
| 5 repayments | PR | C | -0- | -0- |
| 6 (j) Employe ownership assistance | | | | |
| 7 loans | PR | C | -0- | -0- |
| 8 (k) Sale of materials or services | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 9 (ka) Sale of materials and | | | | |
| 10 services--local assistance | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 11 (kb) Sale of materials and | | | | |
| 12 services--individuals and | | | | |
| 13 organizations | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 14 (m) Federal aid, state operations | PR-F | C | 400,000 | 400,000 |
| 15 (n) Federal aid, local assistance | PR-F | C | 19,810,000 | 19,810,000 |
| 16 (o) Federal aid, individuals and | | | | |
| 17 organizations | PR-F | C | -0- | -0- |
| 18 (x) Industrial building | | | | |
| 19 construction loan fund | SEG | C | -0- | -0- |
| (1) P R O G R A M T O T A L S | | | | |
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 8,630,000 | 20,392,500 |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 20,408,000 | 20,260,700 |
| FEDERAL | (| | 20,210,000) | (20,210,000) |
| OTHER | (| | 198,000) | (50,700) |
| SERVICE | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | -0- | -0- |
| OTHER | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 29,038,000 | 40,653,200 |
| 20 (2) TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AND | | | | |
| 21 PROMOTION | | | | |
| 22 (a) General program operations | GPR | A | 1,167,600 | 1,250,200 |
| 23 (b) Tourism marketing | GPR | A | 5,000,000 | 5,000,000 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------|------|-----------|-----------|
| 1 | (c) Film promotion | GPR | A | 150,000 | 150,000 |
| 2 | (g) Gifts, grants and proceeds | PR | C | 5,000 | 5,000 |
| 3 | (k) Sale of materials or services | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 4 | (ka) Sale of materials and | | | | |
| 5 | services--local assistance | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 6 | (kb) Sale of materials and | | | | |
| 7 | services--individuals and | | | | |
| 8 | organizations | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 9 | (m) Federal aid, state operations | PR-F | C | -0- | -0- |
| 10 | (n) Federal aid, local assistance | PR-F | C | -0- | -0- |
| 11 | (o) Federal aid, individuals and | | | | |
| 12 | organizations | PR-F | C | -0- | -0- |
| (2) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | | |
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | | 6,317,600 | 6,400,200 |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | | 5,000 | 5,000 |
| FEDERAL | | | | (-0-) | (-0-) |
| OTHER | | | | (5,000) | (5,000) |
| SERVICE | | | | (-0-) | (-0-) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | | 6,322,600 | 6,405,200 |
| 13 | (3) HOUSING ASSISTANCE | | | | |
| 14 | (w) Housing project revenue | | | | |
| 15 | obligation repayment | SEG | C | -0- | -0- |
| (3) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | | |
| SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | | -0- | -0- |
| OTHER | | | | (-0-) | (-0-) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | | -0- | -0- |
| 16 | (4) EXECUTIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE | | | | |
| 17 | SERVICES | | | | |
| 18 | (a) General program operations | GPR | A | 1,779,800 | 1,866,400 |
| 19 | (g) Gifts, grants and proceeds | PR | C | 5,000 | 5,000 |
| 20 | (k) Sale of materials or services | PR-S | C | 33,100 | 33,100 |
| 21 | (ka) Sale of materials and | | | | |
| 22 | services--local assistance | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|--------|------|---------|---------|
|-----------------------------|--------|------|---------|---------|

| | | | | |
|---|-----------------------------------|------|---|----------------------|
| 1 | (kb) Sale of materials and | | | |
| 2 | services--individuals and | | | |
| 3 | organizations | PR-S | C | -0- -0- |
| 4 | (m) Federal aid, state operations | PR-F | C | 70,900 70,900 |
| 5 | (n) Federal aid, local assistance | PR-F | C | -0- -0- |
| 6 | (o) Federal aid, individuals and | | | |
| 7 | organizations | PR-F | C | -0- -0- |
| 8 | (pz) Indirect cost reimbursements | PR-F | C | 302,600 302,600 |

| | | (4) P R O G R A M | | T O T A L S | |
|--------------------------|--|-------------------|-----------|-------------|-----------|
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | | 1,779,800 | 1,866,400 |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | | 411,600 | 411,600 |
| FEDERAL | | (| 373,500) | (| 373,500) |
| OTHER | | (| 5,000) | (| 5,000) |
| SERVICE | | (| 33,100) | (| 33,100) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 2,191,400 | | 2,278,000 |

| | | 2 0 . 1 4 3 D E P A R T M E N T | | T O T A L S | |
|--------------------------|--|---------------------------------|-------------|-------------|-------------|
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 16,727,400 | | 28,659,100 |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 20,824,600 | | 20,677,300 |
| FEDERAL | | (| 20,583,500) | (| 20,583,500) |
| OTHER | | (| 208,000) | (| 60,700) |
| SERVICE | | (| 33,100) | (| 33,100) |
| SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | -0- | | -0- |
| OTHER | | (| -0-) | (| -0-) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 37,552,000 | | 49,336,400 |

9 20.145 INSURANCE, OFFICE OF THE
 10 COMMISSIONER OF
 11 (1) SUPERVISION OF THE INSURANCE
 12 INDUSTRY

| | | | | | |
|----|--------------------------------|------|---|-----------|-----------|
| 13 | (g) General program operations | PR | A | 4,371,200 | 4,372,700 |
| 14 | (gm) Gifts and grants | PR | C | -0- | -0- |
| 15 | (m) Federal funds | PR-F | C | -0- | -0- |

| | | (1) P R O G R A M | | T O T A L S | |
|-------------------|--|-------------------|------------|-------------|------------|
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 4,371,200 | | 4,372,700 |
| FEDERAL | | (| -0-) | (| -0-) |
| OTHER | | (| 4,371,200) | (| 4,372,700) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 4,371,200 | | 4,372,700 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|-----------------------------------|--------|------|-------------|---------------|
| 1 | (2) PATIENTS COMPENSATION FUND | | | | |
| 2 | (u) Administration | SEG | A | 316,200 | 316,200 |
| 3 | (um) Peer review council | SEG | A | 48,500 | 48,500 |
| 4 | (v) Operations and benefits | SEG | C | 18,350,000 | 18,350,000 |
| | (2) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | |
| | SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 18,714,700 | 18,714,700 |
| | OTHER | (| | 18,714,700) | (18,714,700) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 18,714,700 | 18,714,700 |
| 5 | (3) LOCAL GOVERNMENT PROPERTY | | | | |
| 6 | INSURANCE FUND | | | | |
| 7 | (u) Administration | SEG | A | 173,000 | 173,000 |
| 8 | (v) Operations and benefits | SEG | C | 6,038,400 | 6,038,400 |
| | (3) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | |
| | SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 6,211,400 | 6,211,400 |
| | OTHER | (| | 6,211,400) | (6,211,400) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 6,211,400 | 6,211,400 |
| 9 | (4) STATE LIFE INSURANCE FUND | | | | |
| 10 | (u) Administration | SEG | A | 251,500 | 251,500 |
| 11 | (v) Operations and benefits | SEG | C | 1,415,000 | 1,425,000 |
| | (4) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | |
| | SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 1,666,500 | 1,676,500 |
| | OTHER | (| | 1,666,500) | (1,676,500) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 1,666,500 | 1,676,500 |
| 12 | (7) HEALTH INSURANCE RISK SHARING | | | | |
| 13 | PLAN ADMINISTRATION | | | | |
| 14 | (a) Premium reduction subsidy | GPR | B | 380,500 | 380,500 |
| 15 | (u) Administration | SEG | C | 194,500 | 194,500 |
| | (7) PROGRAM TOTALS | | | | |
| | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 380,500 | 380,500 |
| | SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 194,500 | 194,500 |
| | OTHER | (| | 194,500) | (194,500) |
| | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 575,000 | 575,000 |
| | 20145 DEPARTMENT TOTALS | | | | |
| | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 380,500 | 380,500 |
| | PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 4,371,200 | 4,372,700 |
| | FEDERAL | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| | OTHER | (| | 4,371,200) | (4,372,700) |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|--------|------|-------------|---------------|
| SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 26,787,100 | 26,797,100 |
| OTHER | (| | 26,787,100) | (26,797,100) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 31,538,800 | 31,550,300 |

1 20.155 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

2 (1) REGULATION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

3 (g) Utility regulation PR A 7,299,500 7,519,800

4 (h) Holding company regulation PR C 302,900 302,900

5 (j) Intervenor financing PR A 200,000 200,000

6 (L) Stray voltage program PR A -0- 162,400

7 (Lb) Gifts for stray voltage

8 program PR C -0- -0-

9 (m) Federal funds PR-F C 97,000 97,000

| 20.155 DEPARTMENT | | TOTALS | |
|-------------------|---|------------|--------------|
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | 7,899,400 | 8,282,100 |
| FEDERAL | (| 97,000) | (97,000) |
| OTHER | (| 7,802,400) | (8,185,100) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | 7,899,400 | 8,282,100 |

10 20.165 REGULATION AND LICENSING,11 DEPARTMENT OF

12 (1) PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

13 (g) General program operations PR A 5,091,400 5,070,900

14 (h) Technical assistance;

15 nonstate agencies and

16 organizations PR C -0- -0-

17 (k) Technical assistance; state

18 agencies PR-S C -0- -0-

19 (m) Federal funds PR-F C -0- -0-

| 20.165 DEPARTMENT | | TOTALS | |
|-------------------|---|------------|--------------|
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | 5,091,400 | 5,070,900 |
| FEDERAL | (| -0-) | (-0-) |
| OTHER | (| 5,091,400) | (5,070,900) |
| SERVICE | (| -0-) | (-0-) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | 5,091,400 | 5,070,900 |

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|--------|------|---------|---------|
|-----------------------------|--------|------|---------|---------|

| | | | | | |
|----|---|-----------------------------|-------|------------|-------------|
| 1 | <u>20.175 SAVINGS AND LOAN, OFFICE OF</u> | | | | |
| 2 | <u>THE COMMISSIONER OF</u> | | | | |
| 3 | (1) | SUPERVISION OF SAVINGS AND | | | |
| 4 | | LOAN ASSOCIATIONS | | | |
| 5 | (g) | General program operations | PR A | 903,700 | 899,300 |
| | | 20.175 DEPARTMENT TOTALS | | | |
| | | PROGRAM REVENUE | | 903,700 | 899,300 |
| | | OTHER | (| 903,700) | (899,300) |
| | | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | 903,700 | 899,300 |
| 6 | <u>20.185 SECURITIES, OFFICE OF THE</u> | | | | |
| 7 | <u>COMMISSIONER OF</u> | | | | |
| 8 | (1) | SECURITIES, CORPORATE | | | |
| 9 | | TAKE-OVER AND FRANCHISE | | | |
| 10 | | INVESTMENT REGULATION | | | |
| 11 | (g) | General program operations | PR A | 1,327,100 | 1,306,000 |
| | | 20.185 DEPARTMENT TOTALS | | | |
| | | PROGRAM REVENUE | | 1,327,100 | 1,306,000 |
| | | OTHER | (| 1,327,100) | (1,306,000) |
| | | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | 1,327,100 | 1,306,000 |
| 12 | <u>20.195 LOTTERY BOARD</u> | | | | |
| 13 | (1) | LOTTERY OPERATION | | | |
| 14 | (a) | General fund loan | GPR B | 5,000,000 | -0- |
| 15 | (q) | General program operations | SEG A | 348,500 | 526,000 |
| 16 | (r) | General fund loan repayment | SEG S | -0- | 5,400,000 |
| 17 | (s) | Prizes | SEG S | -0- | -0- |
| 18 | (u) | General fund transfer | SEG S | -0- | -0- |
| | | 20.195 DEPARTMENT TOTALS | | | |
| | | GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | 5,000,000 | -0- |
| | | SEGREGATED FUNDS | | 348,500 | 5,926,000 |
| | | OTHER | (| 348,500) | (5,926,000) |
| | | TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | 5,348,500 | 5,926,000 |

Commerce
FUNCTIONAL AREA TOTALS

| STATUTE, AGENCY and PURPOSE | SOURCE | TYPE | 1987-88 | 1988-89 |
|-----------------------------|--------|------|-------------|---------------|
| GENERAL PURPOSE REVENUES | | | 39,769,600 | 46,442,100 |
| PROGRAM REVENUE | | | 65,126,400 | 67,471,500 |
| FEDERAL | (| | 23,268,400) | (23,270,000) |
| OTHER | (| | 41,646,500) | (42,568,200) |
| SERVICE | (| | 211,500) | (1,633,300) |
| SEGREGATED FUNDS | | | 27,544,300 | 33,164,600 |
| FEDERAL | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| OTHER | (| | 27,544,300) | (33,164,600) |
| SERVICE | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| LOCAL | (| | -0-) | (-0-) |
| TOTAL-ALL SOURCES | | | 132,440,300 | 147,078,200 |

1

E D U C A T I O N

2

20.215 ARTS BOARD

3

(1) SUPPORT OF ARTS PROJECTS

| | | | | | |
|----|--------------------------------|------|---|---------|---------|
| 4 | (a) General program operations | GPR | A | 291,100 | 291,100 |
| 5 | (b) State aid for the arts | GPR | A | 779,300 | 779,300 |
| 6 | (c) Portraits of governors | GPR | A | 5,800 | 5,800 |
| 7 | (d) Challenge grant program | GPR | A | 75,000 | 400,000 |
| 8 | (e) Cultural excellence awards | GPR | A | -0- | 250,000 |
| 9 | (f) Milwaukee community arts | | | | |
| 10 | programs | GPR | A | -0- | 41,000 |
| 11 | (g) Gifts and grants; state | | | | |
| 12 | operations | PR | C | 2,500 | 2,500 |
| 13 | (h) Gifts and grants; aids to | | | | |
| 14 | individuals and organizations | PR | C | -0- | -0- |
| 15 | (k) Funds received from other | | | | |
| 16 | state agencies | PR-S | C | -0- | -0- |
| 17 | (ka) Percent-for-art | | | | |
| 18 | administration | PR-S | A | 35,200 | 35,200 |
| 19 | (m) Federal grants; state | | | | |
| 20 | operations | PR-F | C | 179,900 | 179,900 |
| 21 | (o) Federal grants; aids to | | | | |